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A ship carrying the plague docked in Marseille in 

May 1720, but refused to acknowledge the exis-

tence of the plague epidemic.  In July of the 

same year, however, Marseille was declared a 

plague zone and the Parliament of Aix informed 

local communities.  From then on the consuls of 

Lauris imposed restrictive measures, amongst 

other things:  the closure of Portalet and en-

trance controls, the closure of the windows and 

door of the mill and the reopening of the Hugue-

not pathway to allow strangers to pass at a con-

siderable distance from the village.  But the 

plague continued to spread in the region, crossed 

the Durance River and was only 15 km from the 

village.  It was then that the people of Lauris 

(Laurisiens) and the parish church vowed to erect 

a chapel at Saint Roch (on Saint Martin Hill) and 

promised to make a procession or pilgrimage to 

Our Lady of Lights (Notre Dame de Lumières) if 

Lauris was spared this pest. 

Until 1722 the plague claimed numerous victims, 

but Lauris was spared the sickness.  The people 

of Lauris from then on kept their promise and in 

1832 a chapel was built.  The building was dam-

aged shortly after 1870.  A few years later, Syl-

vain Jauffret drew up plans for the new chapel; 

the construction of which was directed by the 

mason, Sylvain Renoux. 

The chapel was inaugurated on 16th August, 

1898, Saint Roch’s day and the religious song 

composed by Canon David was sung for the first 

time during the inaugural benediction of the Saint 

Roch Chapel. 

Who was Saint Roch? 

Saint Roch was born around 1290 in Montpellier and 

was the son the governor. 

At the age of 20 years, he donates his assets in or-

der to go to Rome to look after victims of the 

plague.  But on his return trip he also becomes ill 

and takes refuge in a forest close to Milan.  Every 

day a dog brings him bread and cares for him by 

licking his wound, until the intrigued dog owner, 

called Gothard, follows his dog.  Saint Roch pushes 

the man away explaining that he has the plague, 

but the man does not abandon him and cares for 

him. 

Once cured, he returns to Montpellier, where he is 

taken for a spy, as he is unrecognisable, and thrown 

into prison.  He dies in 1320 after God promises him 

that those who pray to him will be saved from the 

pest on his intervention. 

How to get to the Chapel ? 

On leaving the Tourist Office, take Avenue de la 

Crau on the right.  At the end of the road, you will 

come to an intersection of Rue Saint Roch, Rue de 

la Fourche and Chemin Saint Roch to the left.  At 

the end of Rue de la Crau, where there is a foun-

tain, make a left turn on to Chemin Saint Roch, 

passing Chemin des Huguenots on the left.  After a 

climb the Chemin Saint Roch turns to the right and 

goes round the hill.  Carry on and 20 metres after 

the bench, take the steep path to the left.  The 

chapel is at the top.  To go down, walk straight 

ahead, with the chapel behind you. 



En mai 1720, le navire porteur de la peste ac-

coste à Marseille en refusant de reconnaitre 

l’épidémie. Mais en Juillet de la même année, 

Marseille est déclarée pestiférée et le Parle-

ment d’Aix en informe les communautés. Dès 

lors, les consuls de Lauris imposent des mesu-

res contraignantes telles que, entre autres, la 

fermeture du Pourtalet et un contrôle des en-

trées, la fermeture de la porte et des fenêtres 

du moulin, et la réouverture du chemin des 

Huguenots pour faire passer les étrangers loin 

du village. 

Mais la peste continue à se propager dans  la 

région, passe la Durance et est à 15 km du vil-

lage. C’est alors que les Laurisiens et l’église 

paroissiale firent vœu d’ériger une chapelle à 

Saint Roch (sur la colline Saint Martin) et pro-

mirent d’aller en procession ou pèlerinage à 

Notre Dame de Lumières si Lauris est épargné 

par ce fléau. 

Jusqu’en 1722 la peste fit de nombreuse victi-

me mais Lauris fut épargné par la maladie. Les 

Laurisiens ont dès lors tenu leur promesse  et 

en 1832 une chapelle fut construite. La cons-

truction fut endommagée peu après 1870. 

Quelques années plus tard, Sylvain Jauffret 

dessine les plans de la nouvelle chapelle qui 

sera alors construite sous la direction du ma-

çon Sylvain Renoux. Le 16 août 1898, jour de 

la Saint Roch, la chapelle est inaugurée et du-

rant la bénédiction d’inauguration de la nouvel-

le chapelle Saint roch, on chanta pour la pre-

mière fois le Cantique composé par le chanoine 

Qui était Saint Roch ? 

Saint Roch était fils de gouverneur, né vers 1290 

à Montpellier.   

A 20 ans il fit don de ses biens pour partir à Rome 

soigner les pestiférés. Mais à son retour il est lui 

aussi touché par la maladie et se réfugie dans 

une forêt près de Milan. Un chien lui apporte du 

pain chaque jour et le soigne en léchant la plaie 

de Saint Roch, jusqu’à ce qu’intrigué le propriétai-

re du chien, Gothard, ne le suive. Saint Roch le 

repousse expliquant qu’il a la peste, mais l’hom-

me ne l’abandonne pas et le soigne. 

Une fois guéri il retourne à Montpellier où mécon-

naissable il est pris pour un espion et jeté en pri-

son. Il meurt en 1320 après que Dieu lui ait pro-

mis que ceux qui l’imploreraient seraient délivrés 

par son intercession de la peste. 

Se rendre à la Chapelle 

En sortant de l’Office de tourisme, prendre 

l’avenue de la Crau à droite. Au bout de la 

rue, vous arrivez à l’intersection de la Rue 

Saint Roch, Rue de la Fourche et du Chemin 

Saint Roch à gauche. Prendre ce chemin, tout 

droit pendant 300 mètres et au croisement, 

laissez la route goudronnée et continuez tout 

droit par le sentier de terre escarpé : vous at-

teindrez la chapelle après environ 150 mètres. 
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